
 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
Time:  8:00 a.m. 

HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541-6633 
 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter on the Agenda, please obtain a card from 

the Housing Commission Secretary and give your name, comments and/or questions.  If you wish to speak on a matter not on the 

Agenda, please wait until the Chair calls for Public Comments.  Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under 

discussion.  NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.  Time limitations shall be at the 

discretion of the Housing Commission Chair. 
 

The Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, January 7, 2010, duly distributed this 

Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it 

on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this 

meeting is needed, please contact the Housing Authority office at (510)727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will 

enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 

 

  PAGE 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 10, 2009 MEETING 2 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
On matters not on the Agenda 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

4-1. Approve an Amendment to the Demolition and Disposition 
Agreement for the Arroyo Vista Project 

ACTION 9 

4-2. Revise Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program Payment 
Standards 

ACTION 11 

4-3. Resolution Approving an Amendment to HACA’s Conflict of 
Interest Code 

ACTION 15 

4-4. Resolution Approving Appointment of the Resident Advisory 
Board (RAB) 

ACTION 19 

4-5. Resolution Approving an Amended and Restated 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Between HACA 
and the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool (HARRP) 

ACTION 23 

4-6. New Housing Software Contingency INFORMATION 26 

4-7. Budget Status Report INFORMATION 27 

4-8. Programs Activity Report INFORMATION 30 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

7. COMMUNICATIONS 

2010 What Home Means to Me Calendar 

8. ADJOURNMENT 



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
November 10, 2009 

 

 



3 

 

HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Special Meeting:  November 10, 2009, 8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 

A Special meeting of the Housing Commission was called to order by Chairperson 
Natarajan at 8:03 a.m. 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS EXCUSED: 
Runa Atai  (entered after roll call) Anna May Ruth Atkin 
Carol Dutra-Vernaci Roberto Medina Mark Gerry 
Maxine Haddock Anu Natarajan  
Janet Lockhart Ursula Reed (entered after roll call) 
Allan Maris (entered after roll call) Christine Steiner 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Christine Gouig, Executive Director Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 
Ron Dion, Deputy Director for Programs Jim McRoberts, IT Manager 
Cathy Leoncio, Finance Director Mary Rizzo-Shuman, HAHM Manager 
Tom Makin, Deputy Director for Operations George Smith, Contracts Manager 
Irv Aragon, Network Administrator Melissa Taesali, Executive Assistant 
Jennifer Cado, Sr. Administrative Analyst  

 
2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 14, 2009 MEETING 

 
Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of October 14, 2009 
Motion/Second: Lockhart/Dutra-Vernaci.  Unanimous 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – On items not on the agenda 

 
Pamela Holmes-Morton submitted a document to the Housing Commission.  Ms. 
Morton stated that the document outlined her concerns with a recent 
recruitment.   
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

 

4-1. Management Class Annual Comparability Adjustment ACTION 

 
Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that a survey of the agencies in the Housing Authority’s 
Comparability Pool was conducted to determine the cost of living salary adjustments 
that were granted to management employees in the Pool.  Mr. Makin presented the 
results of the survey and explained that the average adjustment was 1.13%, and that 
the amount, rounded down to 1%, is the amount proposed for the HACA management 



4 

class annual comparability adjustment.  He indicated that the adjustment would be 
applied to both the employees’ salaries and salary ranges and that approval was 
required from the Commission. 
 

Recommendation:  Approve the management class comparability adjustment. 
Motion/Second: Maris/Medina.  Unanimous 
 

4-2. Addition of an Administrative Analyst Position ACTION 

 
Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that staff has been working to bring HACA’s existing contracts into 
compliance with the new HACA Procurement Policy that was adopted by the 
Commission in October 2008.  He described some of the procurement activities and 
contracts that staff has completed and indicated that there are still several existing 
contracts that are not in compliance with the new Procurement Policy.  He stated that 
this is a concern since HUD closely monitors procurement activities whenever they 
conduct audits of housing authorities. 
 
Mr. Makin explained that since HACA does not have full time procurement staff, staff 
recommends the addition of an Administrative Analyst position to bring the balance of 
the Housing Authority’s contracts and contracting activities into compliance with the 
Procurement Policy. He noted that the appointment to this position would be on a 
provisional basis, expected to last one year.  Mr. Makin also noted that the Personnel 
Committee had considered and approved the creation of the Administrative Analyst 
position at their meeting held earlier that morning and that final approval from the 
Housing Commission is required. 
 

Recommendation: Approve the addition of an Administrative Analyst position. 
Motion/Second:   Haddock/May.   8 ayes; 1 nay:  Cmr. Maris;  
   1 abstention:  Cmr. Reed  

   Motion passed 
 

4-3. Award Contract for Architect of Record ACTION 

 
Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that staff issued a request for qualifications (RFQ) for an architect of 
record in July and that 15 responses were received.  He explained that staff reviewed 
and scored the responses and selected a “short list” of 3 firms.  He further explained 
that the firms were invited to a formal panel interview and presentation on September 
30, 2009 and reported that the panel unanimously selected K2A Architecture + 
Interiors (K2A).  Mr. Makin stated that K2A’s presentation was thorough and that they 
used a Styrofoam model of the office building to present design alternatives that 
included a cost analysis detailing how the alternatives would save construction costs.  
He also stated that K2A had excellent references including the San Mateo County 
Housing Authority, the San Francisco Housing Authority, the City of San Francisco, the 
San Francisco Superior Court, City College of San Francisco, and Calyon Investments.   
Mr. Makin noted that staff reviewed K2A’s financial statements and the information that 



5 

was presented was acceptable.  He recommended that the Commission award the 
contract for architectural and engineering services to K2A for a two year period with an 
option for a third year.  Henry Kwong, Principal, and Cheryl Gordon, Interior Design 
Director, were present at the meeting to answer questions from the Commission. 
 
Questions and Comments from the Commission:      
Cmr. Steiner recounted that prior to the termination of the contract with Edward J. Gee 
and Associates (EJGA) plans had been submitted to the City of Hayward.  She asked 
staff for the outcome.  Mr. Makin stated that after the plans were submitted, HACA’s 
Contracts Manager met with the city staff to discuss their comments on the plans.  Mr. 
Makin said that the comments from the city were extensive and that the plans 
developed by the new architect will have to address the city’s concerns.  Cmr. Steiner 
also asked for an updated timeline of the office remodel.  Mr. Makin explained that once 
the contract is awarded and signed, the new architects will need a couple of weeks to 
familiarize themselves with the state of the project and then they will be able to provide 
a schedule for the project. 
 
Chairperson Natarajan asked Mr. Kwong to outline his experience with 
green/sustainable projects.  Mr. Kwong described a project that K2A did for the City 
College of San Francisco.  He also indicated that some of K2A’s subcontractors are 
LEED consultants that have worked on green/sustainable buildings throughout the Bay 
Area.  Chairperson Natarajan asked if there were any LEED Accredited Professionals 
(LEED APs) within the K2A organization.  Mr. Kwong indicated that he and Ms. Gordon 
both were LEED APs.  Ms. Gordon added that two project managers at K2A were also 
LEED APs.  
 
Cmr. Maris asked what criteria staff used to judge the firm’s financial statements as 
acceptable.  Mr. Makin explained that in the response to the RFQ, K2A provided 
indication of their ongoing projects.  He further explained that the ongoing projects 
were reflected in their financial statements.  Cmr. Maris asked how long K2A has been 
in business.  Ms. Gordon stated that in 2010, K2A will celebrate its 20 year anniversary 
and indicated that K2A has future projects lined up.  Cmr. Maris asked what priority 
K2A will give to the HACA project.  Ms. Gordon stated that once the contract is awarded 
they will begin working on the HACA project immediately.  Mr. Kwong added that they 
have started working on some design plans already and are excited to start the HACA 
office remodel project. 
  

Recommendation: Award contract for Architect of Record to K2A Architecture + 
    Interiors. 
Motion/Second:   Reed/Maris.  Unanimous 
 

4-4. Quarterly Budget Status Report for the Quarter Ending 
September 30, 2009 

INFORMATION 

 
Cathy Leoncio presented the staff report.  Report received with no questions or 
comments from the Commission. 



6 

4-5. Program Activity Reports INFORMATION 

 
Jennifer Cado presented the staff report.   
 
Ms. Cado highlighted two items in the report.  She reported that the participants in the 
2009 NAHRO What Home Means to Me poster contest would be recognized at the next 
Housing Commission meeting scheduled for December 9, 2009.   
 
She also reported that staff opened the waitlist for public housing one bedroom units 
for the elderly and disabled in Union City.  Ms. Cado stated that the waitlist was opened 
from November 2, 2009 to November 6, 2009 and that HACA received a little over 500 
applications.  She also stated that HACA would conduct a lottery among the 
applications received to create a waitlist of 300 applicants.  Ms. Cado reported that a 
number of city libraries and community based organizations served as distribution sites.  
Ms. Gouig commented that staff received excellent cooperation from the city libraries.   
  
Questions and Comments from the Commission: 
Cmr. May asked Ms. Cado to clarify how the libraries acted as distribution sites.  Ms. 
Cado explained that the libraries agreed to let HACA place paper applications at the 
library so that those who did not have access to the internet could visit their local 
library for a paper application.  
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  
 None. 
 
6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 
None. 
 
Cmr. Maris commented on the personnel matter that was raised by Pamela 
Holmes-Morton and asked if staff was looking into the matter.  Cmr. Dutra-
Vernaci, who chaired the Personnel Committee meeting earlier that morning, 
stated that she talked to Christine Gouig about the issues and that Ms. Gouig 
reassured her that the matter is being handled internally.  Cmr. Makin thanked 
Cmr. Dutra-Vernaci and stated that he wanted to be sure that the matter was 
being dealt with.   
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Christine Gouig announced that HACA was one of a few select housing authorities 
invited by HUD’s Secretary Shaun Donovan to participate in a Section 8 
stakeholders meeting in Washington D.C.  She stated that it was an honor to be 
invited and reported that Ron Dion, HACA’s Deputy Director for Programs, 
attended the event.  She asked Ron to speak briefly about the event.  Mr. Dion 
described the format for the meetings and indicated that attendees had the 
opportunity to talk with Secretary Donovan during question and answer sessions.  
He stated that the topics for discussion at the meetings and work sessions 
included deconcentration, HUD’s initiative to re-engineer business practices by 
creating a massive database to automate information, and HUD’s plan to conduct 



7 

an administrative fee study to identify components for operating an efficient and 
effective Section 8 program and using that model to fund housing authorities in 
the future.  Mr. Dion reported that meetings were very productive and 
informative. 
 
Ms. Gouig reminded the Commission that the time of the December meeting was 
changed to 5:00 p.m.  She stated that at the December meeting, staff would 
recognize the six local NAHRO Poster Contest winners.   Ms. DeCray announced 
that following the Commission meeting, FSS would be holding their gift making 
event.  She indicated that refreshments would be served and invited the 
Commissioners to stay on after their meeting to participate in the FSS event.  
Ms. DeCray also talked about the FSS holiday gift giving effort and stated that 
staff was seeking donations.  She stated that the goal was to give every FSS 
family a gift card for the holidays.    

  
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business Chairperson Natarajan adjourned the meeting at 
8:40 a.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Christine Gouig   Date  Anu Natarajan   Date 
Executive Director/Commission Secretary Chairperson 
 



8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
January 13, 2010 

 

 

 

 

 



9 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 

Subject: Amend Disposition and Development Agreement 
(DDA) for Arroyo Vista 

  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment A:  DDA amendment 
  
Recommendation: Approve the amendment and authorize the 

Executive Director to sign it 
  
Financial Statement: n/a 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
On July 25, 2007, HACA, the Dublin Housing Authority, the City of Dublin, 
Eden Housing and Citation Homes all entered into a Disposition and 
Development Agreement (DDA) for the redevelopment of the Arroyo Vista 
public housing site in Dublin.  In October of that same year the parties were 
sued by four Arroyo Vista tenants, represented by the Public Interest Law 
Project and Bay Area Legal Aid, to set aside the DDA. 
 
On May 22, 2009, HUD approved the Dublin Housing Authority’s disposition 
application and the plaintiffs’ counsel proposed negotiations to settle the 
lawsuit.  Negotiations were conducted over several months and approved by 
your Commission, the Dublin Housing Authority Commission and the City of 
Dublin City Council, as well as Eden and Citation, and ultimately, HUD.  On 
December 17 the settlement was approved by the court and the case 
dismissed. 
 
As the DDA is now over two years old, the settlement agreement calls for it 
to be amended to incorporate certain HUD approval conditions, including 
affordability provisions and the use of sales proceeds.   
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
HUD Affordability Conditions 
The Dublin Housing Authority proposed, and HUD accepted the proposal and 
conditioned its approval on, HACA providing Section 8 project based 
vouchers to the new project (49 vouchers for seniors and 32 for families).  
Your Commission will recall that you authorized issuance of a Request for 
Proposals for project based vouchers last year.  Eden Housing, developer of 
the rental portion of the new Arroyo Vista, applied for and was awarded 81 
project based vouchers.  HACA awarded these vouchers prior to HUD’s 
approval of the disposition application.  Thus, amending the DDA to include 
the project based voucher requirement simply documents actions already 
taken. 



10 

 
The HUD approval requires Eden to market and rent the project based units 
to Section 8-eligible households for at least 20 years.  A reverter clause will 
be recorded against the property stipulating that the property shall revert to 
the Dublin Housing Authority, or its successors and assigns, and be placed 
under a Declaration of Trust in favor of HUD if Eden fails to develop, operate 
and maintain the property in accordance with HUD’s conditions. 
 
In addition, HUD imposed various conditions related to relocation of the 
Arroyo Vista residents.  These included: provision of a list of participating 
Section 8 landlords with special emphasis on Dublin landlords; providing 
special assistance to disabled households, including reasonable 
accommodation; monitoring the success of voucher holders in finding 
housing and taking reasonable actions to ensure that success; and briefing 
displaced tenants on their fair housing rights and addressing any fair housing 
complaints that may arise.  HUD’s relocation conditions have been 
incorporated verbatim in the DDA amendment. 
 
Payment and Use of Sales Proceeds  
Citation Homes is paying $12 million for its portion of the property as 
reflected in the original DDA.  This money will be used to develop the 
affordable rental housing.  HUD’s conditions, as proposed by the Dublin 
Housing Authority in its disposition application, include an allocation of these 
proceeds as follows: 

� $1 million for relocation of existing residents 
� Up to $10 million for the family rental housing 
� Remainder for the senior rental housing 

 
Eden has revised the development budgets that were included in the original 
DDA to allocate $8.7 million for the family housing and $2.3 million for the 
senior housing.  In addition, Eden has generally updated its development 
budgets to reflect current rents, construction costs and loan and equity 
pricing.  These are attached as Exhibit B to the DDA amendment. 
 
Citation has agreed to make its payments as follows: 

� $250,000 by February 1, 2010 (after all parties have signed this 
amendment) 

� $500,000 by August 1, 2010 (six months from execution of the 
amendment) 

� $11,250,000 at conveyance of the subdivided property to Eden and 
Citation (expected to be February 2011) 

 
Finally, the amendment provides for a $1.5 million construction loan from the 
City of Dublin to Eden Housing.  The budgets in Exhibit B show the full 
amount being used as a loan for the family units. 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission approve the DDA amendment and 
authorize the Executive Director to sign it and any other documentation that 
may be needed to implement the amendment. 
 



11 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 

Subject: Section 8 Benefit Payment Standards 
  
Exhibits Attached: Payment Standards by City, Payment Standards 

Amounts 
  
Recommendation: Approve the Proposed Payment Standards 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

A housing authority’s payments to landlords to subsidize the rents of Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV) participants are called “Housing 
Assistance Payments” (HAP).  A formula determines the total HAP funding that 
HUD provides annually to each housing authority in order to pay HAP to 
landlords.  Congress may or may not appropriate sufficient funds to fund 100% 
of that formula. 

A housing authority must manage the HAP funds that it receives from HUD to 
pay landlords enough so that families can afford modest housing and yet not run 
out of money before the end of the year when new funding is provided.  If a 
housing authority sets the rents that families are allowed to pay too low for its 
market area, families won’t be able to find suitable housing and/or will have to 
pay too much (i.e., more than 30% - 40% of their income) as rent.  If the 
housing authority sets rent too high, it will run out of HAP funds and will have to 
reduce the size of its program, possibly having to terminate the leases of 
participating families. 

The rents that a housing authority allows participating families to pay are 
determined, in part, by HUD.  Each year, HUD publishes the fair market rents 
(FMR) for each market area in the United States to be effective on October 1 of 
that year.  FMR is the rent, including the cost of utilities (except telephone), that 
is generally paid in the market area to rent privately owned, existing, decent, 
safe and sanitary rental housing that is modest (i.e., non-luxury). 

After HUD publishes the FMRs, each housing authority must then adopt one or 
more payment standard schedules based on the FMRs.  A housing authority may 
either adopt a single payment standard amount for its entire area, or a separate 
payment standard amount for each designated part of the FMR area (e.g., each 
city). 



12 

The payment standard establishes the voucher payment standard amount for 
each unit size—i.e., the maximum gross rent (rent plus utilities) that will be 
used by the housing authority to compute the monthly HAP that it will pay the 
landlord on behalf of the family.  (The actual gross rent that the housing 
authority will use is based on the reasonableness of the rent in comparison to 
that of comparable units in the same neighborhood; it is not automatically the 
payment standard.) 

The housing authority may establish the payment standard amount for a unit 
size at any level between 90 percent and 110 percent of the published FMR for 
that unit size.  HUD approval is not required to establish a payment standard 
amount in that range (called the “basic range”), but is required to establish a 
payment standard amount that is higher or lower than the basic range. 

 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

At your September 2009 meeting you approved payment standards based on 
HUD’s most recent FMRs.  Those payment standards lowered the maximum 
gross rent for most unit sizes in most of the cities HACA serves.  When payment 
standards are lowered, currently housed participants do not experience the 
decrease until their second annual reexamination after the decrease.  
Participants who move and new participants experience the decrease 
immediately.  

HACA lowered its payment standards last fall as a part of a plan to conserve 
funds in the face of changes made by HUD in its HAP funding formula in the last 
two years.  In addition, the economic crisis has resulted in Section 8 tenants 
losing their jobs and/or having their public assistance reduced.  These factors 
have resulted in a number of housing authorities cutting participants from their 
programs.  HUD and housing professional associations continue to expect future 
budget cuts for the HCV program.   

Since HACA lowered its payment standards last fall, we have continued to 
experience an increase in HAP payments (as illustrated in the table below), as a 
result of various factors, including, especially, lower average participant income.   

Average HAP 

Period Average HAP 

January 2010 $1,076 

October 2009 $1,063 

July 2009 $1,040 

January 2009 $1,002 

October 2008 $988 

July 2008 $984 

 



13 

Staff has analyzed data including gross rents currently being paid by Section 8 
participants, the number of over-housed families, the number of families whose 
rent exceeds the current payment standards, approved increases in the utility 
allowance, and impact on the total tenant portion of existing participants.  The 
proposed payment standards are surgical adjustments necessary to continue to 
allow HACA to pay landlords enough so that families can afford modest housing 
and yet not run out of money before the end of the fiscal year when new HUD 
funding will be provided.  Staff recommends that your Housing Commission 
approve the following payment standards. 



14 

Payment Standards by City 

 Number of Bedrooms 

City 1 2 3 4 5 

Albany 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

Castro Valley 90% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

Dublin 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 

Emeryville 95% 95% 90% 95% 95% 

Fremont 95% 90% 90% 90% 90% 

Hayward 90% 95% 95% 90% 90% 

Newark 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

Pleasanton 90% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

San Leandro 90% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

San Lorenzo 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

Union City 95% 90% 90% 90% 90% 
 

(Cities shown in the same background color have identical payment 
standards.  Payment standards in excess of 100% are bordered.  
Payment standards shown in red fonts required HUD approval which 
was received in October 2009.) 

Dublin payment standards are higher due to the commitment to relocate 
the Arroyo Vista residents.  Once all residents are relocated Dublin’s 
payment standards will be revised as appropriate. 

Payment Standards Amounts 

    Benefits Payment Standard 

BR FMR* 90% 95% 100% 105% 110% 115% 120% 

1 $1,162 $1,046 $1,104 $1,162 $1,220 $1,278 $1,336 $1,394 

2 $1,377 $1,240 $1,308 $1,377 $1,445 $1,514 $1,583 $1,652 

3 $1,867 $1,681 $1,774 $1,867 $1,960 $2,053 $2,147 $2,240 

4 $2,312 $2,081 $2,196 $2,312 $2,427 $2,543 $2,658 $2,774 

5 $2,658 $2,393 $2,525 $2,658 $2,790 $2,923 $3,056 $3,189 

         

*effective 10/1/09       



15 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 
 

Subject: Resolution Approving Amendments to the Conflict of 
Interest Code  

  
Exhibits Attached: - Edited and Clean versions of the proposed 

amendments to the HACA Conflict of Interest 
Code  

- Resolution No. 01-10 
  
Recommendation: Approve the proposed amendments 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Political Reform Act (Government Code §81000) requires state and local 
governmental agencies to adopt and promulgate a Conflict of Interest Code 
(Code) and to review its Code on a biennial basis. 
 
In 2008, staff reviewed the Code and determined that changes to 
department and job titles, newly created job classifications, and the 
elimination of positions warranted amendments to the Code.  Your 
Commission approved these changes at your March 2008 meeting.     
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Since March 2008 there have been additional changes to department and job 
titles and newly created job classifications.  In order to reflect these changes, 
amendments to the Code’s List of Designated Employees are necessary.   
 
Edited and clean versions of Appendix A of HACA’s Conflict of Interest Code 
are attached.  Staff recommends that your Commission approve the 
proposed amendments to the Code.    
 
Upon approval, the amended Code will be submitted to the Alameda County 
Board of Supervisors for final approval.  The amended Code is not effective 
until it has been approved by the Board.   



16 

EDITED 
 

APPENDIX “A” 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE   

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 
 

 Designated Employees Disclosure Categories 
INSERT  Administrative Analyst ALL 

 Administrative Services Assistant ALL 

 *Consultants ALL 

 Contracts Manager ALL 

 Deputy Director for Operations ALL 

 Deputy Director for Programs ALL 

 Dublin Area Manager ALL 

 Eligibility Services Leadworker I, III 

 Executive Assistant ALL 

INSERT Family Self-Sufficiency Leadworker I, III 

DELETE Housing Assistance and Housing Management Leadworker I, III 

 Housing Assistance and Housing Management Manager ALL 

DELETE Housing Assistance and Family Services Leadworker I, III 

 Housing Assistance and Family Service Manager ALL 

 Housing Inspector I, III 

DELETE Housing Manager I, III 

INSERT Housing Management Assistant I, III 

INSERT Housing Management Leadworker I, III 

 Housing Specialist I, III 

 Information Technology Manager ALL 

INSERT Leasing Services Leadworker I, III 

 Network Administrator I, III 

 Sr. Administrative Analyst ALL 



17 

CLEAN 
 

APPENDIX “A” 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE   

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 
 

Designated Employees Disclosure Categories 
Administrative Analyst ALL 

Administrative Services Assistant ALL 

*Consultants ALL 

Contracts Manager ALL 

Deputy Director for Operations ALL 

Deputy Director for Programs ALL 

Dublin Area Manager ALL 

Eligibility Services Leadworker I, III 

Executive Assistant ALL 

Family Self-Sufficiency Leadworker I, III 

Housing Assistance and Housing Management Manager ALL 

Housing Assistance and Family Service Manager ALL 

Housing Inspector I, III 

Housing Management Assistant I, III 

Housing Management Leadworker I, III 

Housing Specialist I, III 

Information Technology Manager ALL 

Leasing Services Leadworker I, III 

Network Administrator I, III 

Sr. Administrative Analyst ALL 

 



18 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  01-10 
 

APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

ALAMEDA CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act (Government Code §81000 et seq.) requires 
every local governmental agency to review its Conflict of Interest Code (“Code”) to 
determine if it is necessary to amend the Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“HACA”) has 
reviewed its Code and has determined that amendments to the Code’s List of 
Designated Employees are necessary, including changes to department and job titles, 
and newly created job classifications;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Alameda does hereby approve the amendments to 
the Code.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director shall submit the 
amended Code to the Alameda County Board of Supervisors for final approval. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Alameda on January 13, 2010, by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
EXCUSED: 
 
ABSENT: 
        ____________________________ 
        Anu Natarajan 
        Housing Commission Chairperson 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________   
Christine Gouig  
Executive Director/Commission Secretary 
        

 
Adopted:  January 13, 2010 



19 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 

 
Subject: Re-Appointment of Resident Advisory Board (RAB) 
  
Exhibits Attached: - Current RAB Members 

- Resolution 02-10 
  
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 02-10  
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The HACA Agency Plan is a comprehensive guide to HACA’s policies, 
programs, operations, and strategies for meeting local housing needs and 
goals.  HUD regulations require that housing authorities develop both annual 
plan and five-year plans.  A new HACA Five-Year is due this year.  It and the 
HACA annual plan will be information items on your Commission's February 
10 meeting agenda and action items on your March 10 meeting agenda.  The 
Plans must be submitted to HUD by April 15. 
 
Each housing authority is required to establish a Resident Advisory Board 
(RAB) to assist in making recommendations regarding the development or 
significant modification of the Plan.  Membership has to "adequately reflect 
and represent the residents assisted by the PHA."  In submitting its Plan to 
HUD, a housing authority must include a copy of the recommendations made 
by the RAB and a description of the manner in which HACA addressed the 
recommendations. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
In late 2007, HACA expanded the scope of its recruitment for the RAB to all 
5,456 Section 8 participants as well as to all 230 PH residents.  Previously, 
HACA had attempted to develop a RAB from among all Public Housing (PH) 
residents, but only a random sampling of Section 8 participants.  Nineteen 
Section 8 participants and two PH residents, including then Commissioner 
Atai, responded.  Only Section 8 participants from Fremont, Hayward, San 
Leandro and Union City applied.  The two PH applicants live in Union City. 
 
Senior staff screened the submitted applications and selected a broadly 
representational number of applicants for appointment to the RAB.  In doing 
so, staff considered housing program, gender, race, elderly and/or disabled 
status, family size and composition, presence of wage income, and city of 



20 

residence.  At your Commission's January 2008 meeting, you appointed the 
10-member RAB which staff recommended for a 2-year term. 
The RAB's term has now expired.  Additionally, three RAB members have 
voluntarily left the Section 8 and PH Programs because of changes in their 
family circumstances.  Seven members of the RAB remain participants of the 
Section 8 or PH Program.  Staff has succeeded in contacting five, all of whom 
have expressed interest in being re-appointed to the RAB.  We continue to 
attempt to reach the two remaining members. 
 
A RAB of 5-7 members is sufficient for providing input into the Agency Plan 
and for complying with the HUD RAB requirement.  In light of the significant 
effort required to recruit and vet new RAB members, staff recommends that 
the existing RAB members be re-appointed for another 2-year term, i.e., for 
FY 2010-2011 and FY 2011-2012. 
 



21 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
  

RESIDENT ADVISORY BOARD (RAB) 
 

 
 
 

 

Current RAB Member City 

Jill Alarcon San Leandro 

Sahara Baldwin Hayward 

Jasmine Brooks Hayward 

Geneva Farmer Fremont 

Annie Joseph Union city 

Joanette Tavarez San Leandro 

Goljan Zamani Union City 

 
 



22 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  02-10 
 

APPROVING APPOINTMENT OF THE RESIDENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
 WHEREAS, HUD regulations require that housing authorities develop an annual 
Agency Plan (“Plan”) and Five-Year Plan and the Housing Authority of the County of 
Alameda (“HACA”) Five-Year Plan is due this year; and  
 

WHEREAS, HACA is required to establish a Resident Advisory Board (“RAB”) to 
assist in making recommendations regarding the development or significant 
modification of the Plan and Five-Year Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in January 2008, the HACA Housing Commission appointed a RAB to 
a 2-year term and the RAB’s term has now expired; and 
 
 WHEREAS, seven members of the RAB appointed in 2008 remain participants of 
the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program or Public Housing Program and desire to 
remain on the RAB. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Alameda does hereby approve the appointment of 
the existing RAB members for another 2-year term for the purposes of the submission 
and modifications of the FY2010-2011 and the FY2011-2012 Plan and Five-Year Plan.     
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Alameda on January 13, 2010, by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
EXCUSED: 
 
ABSENT: 
        ____________________________ 
        Anu Natarajan 
        Housing Commission Chairperson 
Attest: 
 
________________________________   
Christine Gouig  
Executive Director/Commission Secretary 
        
Adopted:  January 13, 2010 
 



23 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 

Subject: Resolution Approving an Amended and Restated 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Between 
HACA and the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool  

  
Exhibits Attached: - Resolution 03-10 

- Attachment B:  Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement  

  
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 03-10 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

HACA is a member of the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool (HARRP). 
HAARP’s primary purpose is to provide its members insurance and 
indemnification against losses. 
 
HARRP was formed by housing authorities from the states of California, 
Nevada, Oregon, and Washington.  The HARRP Board of Directors is 
composed of nine (9) members:  three (3) representing members from the 
Association of Washington Housing Authorities, three (3) representing 
members from the Association of Oregon Housing Authorities, and three (3) 
representing members of the Northern California/Nevada Executive Directors’ 
Association. 
 
On July 15, 1992, the participating housing authorities entered into an 
intergovernmental cooperation agreement (ICA) that set forth the powers, 
duties, and functions of HARRP. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
Despite the success of its public housing insurance program, state laws have 
precluded HARRP from providing coverage to other types of affordable 
housing entities in which housing authorities are involved such as nonprofit 
corporations, tax credit limited partnerships and limited liability companies.  
In 2009, HARRP successfully sponsored legislation in Washington and Oregon 
that established the regulatory framework for an insurance pool for these 
different types of affordable housing entities.  This legislation became 
effective January 1, 2010 and provides the statutory authorization for HARRP 
to provide coverage to these other affordable housing entities.  HARRP will 
pursue similar legislation in Nevada and California this year. 



24 

 
The Board of Directors of HARRP is proposing to amend the existing ICA to 
update some outdated provisions and to include new provisions that would 
allow HARRP to establish an Affordable Housing Pool for the purpose of 
providing insurance coverage to other types of affordable housing entities. 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission adopt the resolution approving an 
amended and restated ICA between HACA and HARRP. 
 



25 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  03-10 

 
APPROVING AN AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA AND 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITIES RISK RETENTION POOL 
 

 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“HACA”) is a member of 
the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool (“HARRP”), an intergovernmental entity created by 
agreement, which provides indemnification against risk of loss; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of HARRP has proposed that HARRP’s members enter 
into an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement (“ICA”), which amends and restates the 
Amended and Restated ICA dated July 15, 1992; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the ICA which sets forth the powers, duties and functions of HARRP, shall 
become effective upon the approval of at least two-thirds of HARRP’s members; 
 
 RESOLVED, that HACA shall be authorized to enter into the ICA.  
  
 RESOLVED FUTHER, that the Executive Director is authorized to execute and deliver 
the ICA on behalf of HACA. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Executive Director shall be authorized and directed on 
behalf of HACA to do the following: 
 

(a) Take such actions as shall be necessary or appropriate for HACA to perform 
its obligations on a timely basis under the ICA or as otherwise required by 
HARRP; and 

(b) Take from time to time such other actions as are necessary or desirable to 
effect the purposes for which HARRP is organized as provided in the ICA; 
and 

(c) Approve any amendments to the ICA; and 

(d) Execute and deliver any agreements, instruments or documents (or 
amendments thereto) necessary or desirable to carry out the foregoing 
resolutions.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Commissioners of the Housing Authority 

of the County of Alameda, this _____ day of ___________ by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    

NAYS:   

ABSTAIN:    

ABSENT:  

EXCUSED:           

      ____________________________  

      Anu Natarajan   Date 
Attest:      Commission Chairperson 
        
_________________________________   Adopted: 

Christine Gouig   Date 
Executive Director/Commission Secretary   ___________________ 
 



26 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting: January 13, 2010   
 

Subject: Contract for Emphasys Housing Software Update 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Information Only 
  
Financial Statement: Maximum $17,000, Funding from Local Fund 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
At your March 2009 Commission meeting, you awarded a contract to 
Emphasys Software at an estimated cost of $338,405 for the Housing 
Software and related services. The cost at that time was only estimated 
because staff was unclear about some customizations that might be required 
and additional training that might be needed. The estimated cost contained a 
contingency of $23,000. Staff is using $18,900 of this contingency in making 
the software communicate with our Electronic Content Management (ECM) 
system and for two additional weeks of onsite training and management 
during the Section 8 Conversion process. 
 
Since there are still two other modules left to convert (Public Housing and 
Accounting/Finance), staff is increasing the contingency line item from 
$23,000 to $40,000 to allow for the possibility of more customization and 
training with the other modules, should it be required. 
 
Housing Authority data conversion is completed and the software setup in 
advance of the conversion is taking place. The conversion of the Section 8 
process is anticipated to start in February. 
 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
No action is necessary. This is an information item only. 
 



27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUDGET STATUS REPORTS 
 

 



28 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 

Budget Status Report FYE 2009-2010 

November 2009 

 

 

 

FY 2010 Budgeted @ Actual @ OVER PROJECTED SCH. 2009 2010

OPERATING BUDGET 11/30/2009 11/30/2009 (UNDER) TO 6/30/10 NO. BUDGET BUDGET DIFFERENCE

INCOME

Investment Income 14,167 416 (13,751) 997 A1 39,500 34,000 (5,500)

Misc. Income 145,000 149,721 4,721 359,331 A1 450,300 348,000 (102,300)

(Fees) 3,128,387 2,964,960 (163,427) 7,115,904 A 6,987,776 7,508,129 520,354

TOTAL INCOME 3,287,554 3,115,097 (172,457) 7,476,232 7,477,576 7,890,129 412,554

EXPENSES

Administration

Salaries 1,833,488 1,748,157 (85,331) 4,195,576 B-1& 2 4,191,398 4,400,371 208,973

Other Admin. 460,807 489,159 28,353 1,173,983 C-1&2 986,473 1,105,936 119,463

Total 2,294,294 2,237,316 (56,978) 5,369,559 5,177,871 5,506,306 328,436

General

Insurance 71,169 52,283 (18,887) 125,479 E 155,433 170,807 15,374

Employee Benefits 916,744 805,956 (110,788) 1,934,294 2,095,699 2,200,185 104,486

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 987,913 858,239 (129,675) 2,059,773 2,251,132 2,370,992 119,860

Total Routine Expenses 3,282,208 3,095,555 (186,653) 7,429,331 7,429,003 7,877,298 448,296

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 D2 33,700 0 (33,700)

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,282,208 3,095,555 (186,653) 7,429,331 7,462,703 7,877,298 414,596

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) 5,346 19,542 14,196 46,901 14,873 12,831 (2,042)

Unrestricted Net Assets-AF @ 6/30/08 2,633,795$        

Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/09 344,413

Projected Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/09 2,978,208$        

Budgeted Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/10 12,831
Budgeted Unrestricted Net Assets-AF @ 6/30/10 2,991,039$        

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



29 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 

PUBLIC HOUSING 

Budget Status Report FYE 2009-2010 

November 2009 

 

 
FY 2010 YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUALS OVER/(UNDER) Projected SCH. 2009 2010  
OPERATING BUDGET 11/30/2009 11/30/09 BUDGET to 6/30/10 NO. BUDGET BUDGET Difference

INCOME

Dwelling Rentals 463,300 423,082 (40,218) 1,015,397 1,111,920 1,111,920 0

Investment Income  3,906 290 (3,617) 695 A 18,400 9,375 (9,025)

Misc. Income 71,526 38,053 (33,474) 91,326 82,905 171,663 88,758

Operating Subsidy (HUD form 52723) 171,245 172,827 1,581 414,785 ** 334,582 410,989 76,407

Capital Grant (salaries/benefits) 63,030 0 (63,030) 0 105,923 151,272 45,349
TOTAL INCOME 773,007 634,251 (138,757) 1,522,203 1,653,730 1,855,218 201,488

 
EXPENSES  

 

Administration  

Salaries 160,394 146,539 (13,855) 351,693 B-1& 2 406,827 384,945 (21,882)

Other Admin. 24,769 24,056 (714) 57,733 C-1 51,853 59,446 7,593

Total 185,163 170,594 (14,569) 409,427 458,680 444,391 (14,289)

 

Tenant Services  

Resident Managers 2,292 1,125 (1,167) 2,700 5,500 5,500 0

Recreation 3,125 5,114 1,989 7,500 7,500 7,500 0

Total 5,417 6,239 822 10,200 13,000 13,000 0

 

Utilities  
Water 37,519 30,741 (6,778) 73,779 90,045 90,045 0

Electricity 8,275 6,388 (1,887) 15,331 19,860 19,860 0

Gas 2,372 705 (1,667) 1,691 5,693 5,693 0

Sewage 18,750 18,750 0 45,000 40,156 45,000 4,844

Total 66,916 56,584 (10,330) 135,801 155,754 160,598 4,844

 

Maintenance  

Salaries 51,010 52,609 1,599 126,263 B-2 118,296 122,424 4,128

Materials 52,275 31,679 (20,596) 76,030 D 76,997 125,461 48,464

Capital Fund Grants (44,327) 0 44,327 0 (175,786) (106,385) 69,402

Contract Costs 318,984 221,000 (97,984) 530,401 D 677,715 765,562 87,847

Total 377,943 305,289 (72,654) 732,693 697,222 907,062 209,840

 

General  

Insurance 27,038 22,018 (5,019) 52,843 E 67,553 64,891 (2,662)
Tax-In Lieu Of 39,638 39,638 (0) 95,132 95,617 95,132 (485)

Employee Benefits 105,702 75,968 (29,734) 182,323 262,561 253,685 (8,876)

Collection Loss 417 0 (417) 1,000 1,000 1,000 0

Miscellaneous 417 0 (417) 1,000 1,000 1,000 0

Total 173,212 137,624 (35,587) 332,298 427,731 415,708 (12,023)

 

Total Routine Expenses 808,650 676,330 (132,318) 1,620,418 1,752,386 1,940,759 188,373

 

Capital Expenditure 0 0 0

 
TOTAL EXPENSES 808,650 676,330 (132,318) 1,620,418 1,752,386 1,940,759 188,373

 

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (35,642) (42,078) (6,439) (98,215) (98,656) (85,541) 13,115

Unrestricted Net Assets, @ 7/1/08 455,550
Net Deficit @ 6/30/09 (171,697)
Unrestricted Net Assets, 6/30/09 283,853$       
Budgeted Net Loss @ 6/30/10 (85,541)
Budgeted Unrestricted Net Assets, 6/30/10 198,311$       

 

 



30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAMS ACTIVITY REPORT 
 



31 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  January 13, 2010 
 

Subject: Programs Activity Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Section 8 Contract Report; Fraud Payments Report; 

Landlord Rental Listing Report; FSS Program Monthly 
Report 

  
Recommendation: Receive Report 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 
 

• Lease-Up:  As of January 1, 2010 the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
program had 5,570 units under contract.  The 1-month lease-up average 
for the 2009 calendar year is 98.65%. 

 
• Program Utilization:  As of January 1, 2010 the average HAP subsidy is 

$1,076 and the average tenant-paid rent portion is $352 for an average 
Contract Rent of $1,428. 
 
� As of January 1, 2010 HACA has 109 outgoing billed portability 

contracts (i.e., HACA voucher holders who are housed in another 
housing authority’s jurisdiction).   

� As of January 1, 2010 HACA billed other housing authorities, primarily 
the Oakland Housing Authority, for 1,441 incoming portability 
contracts.  HACA receives only 80% of the HUD-authorized 
Administrative Fee for billed incoming portability contracts. 

 
• Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 
• Fraud / Debt Recovery:  HACA successfully collected $4,452.94 in fraud 

and debt recovery payments for the month of December 2009.  A total of 
$43,776.42 was collected over the last six months.   
 
HACA collected $576.70 in Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) 
overpayments for the month of December 2009.  A total of $3,563.70 was 
collected over the last six months. 

 
• Landlord Rental Listings:  As of January 4, 2010 there are 1,012 

landlords with properties in HACA’s jurisdiction utilizing the GoSection8 
rental listing service.  Of those, 30 are new to the Section 8 program this 
month.  There were 231 active properties listed.  



32 

FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY 
 

2009 ended with a blur of activity and gift-giving in FSS. One hundred 
thirteen families benefited from the generosity of our Commissioners, 
landlords, HACA staff, businesses, and FSS participants by receiving at least 
one grocery or department store gift card. We partnered with the Hayward 
Fire Department and Toys for Tots to distribute gifts to the children. More 
than one family told us that without the FSS grocery card, their holiday 
dinner would have been meatless. 
 
FSS staff would like to express their special thanks to Commissioners 
Natarajan, Maris, and Reed for their role in recognizing the NAHRO Poster 
Contest winners. All six local winners were presented their posters in 
attractive frames. The highlight of this event was the reading by the national 
winner of her essay on the experience. She was also presented with a framed 
copy of the essay. 
 
Our enrollment at the end of the year was 202 families. This was an 
achievement for the program because we have been working with only two of 
the three regular staff for the last eight months. We anticipate recruiting and 
hiring the third staff in the first quarter of 2010. 
 
PUBLIC HOUSING 
 
• Occupancy:  As of January 1, 2010 the Public Housing program had 223 

of 230 units leased and has a 96.96% fiscal year-to-date lease up rate. 
 



33 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the month of  

December 2009 
 

 

 Certificates Vouchers 
DECEMBER 2009 

TOTAL  

City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP  

DECEMBER 
2008 

DECEMBER 
2007 

Albany        -     $            -           44   $      46,552         44   $     46,552   43 40 

Castro 
Valley        13   $      11,453       237   $    250,746       250   $   262,199   239 265 

Dublin          2   $       1,762       224   $    236,992       226   $   238,754   199 154 

Emeryville          6   $       5,286         90   $      95,220         96   $   100,506   97 103 

Fremont        28   $      24,668    1,402   $ 1,483,316    1,430   $1,507,984   1,364 1,441 

Hayward      111   $      97,791    2,288   $ 2,420,704    2,399   $2,518,495   2,391 2,358 

Newark          3   $       2,643       291   $    307,878       294   $   310,521   293 290 

Pleasanton          4   $       3,524       143   $    151,294       147   $   154,818   150 152 

San 
Leandro        20   $      17,620    1,315   $ 1,391,270    1,335   $1,408,890   1,302 1,283 

San 
Lorenzo          2   $       1,762       190   $    201,020       192   $   202,782   179 177 

Union City          3   $       2,643       693   $    733,194       696   $   735,837   699 741 

TOTALS      192   $    169,152    6,917   $ 7,318,186    7,109   $7,487,338   6,956 7,004 

 

 

 
*based on an average December Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $887 per certificate contract 
**based on an average December Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1055 per voucher contract 

 



3
4
 

   

0
9
-1
0

D
E
B
T
 C
O
L
L
E
C
T
IO
N
S

F
Y
E
 6
/3
0
/1
0

J
U
L
Y

A
U
G
U
S
T

S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R

J
A
N
U
A
R
Y

F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y

M
A
R
C
H

A
P
R
IL

M
A
Y

J
U
N
E

G
R
A
N
D

T
O
T
A
L
S

D
A
M
A
G
E
 C
L
A
IM
S

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
5
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
5
0
.0
0

F
R
A
U
D
 R
E
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
S

$
1
5
,4
5
6
.3
3

$
8
,0
0
2
.8
3

$
6
,0
4
4
.4
4

$
5
,0
8
3
.9
6

$
4
,7
3
5
.9
2

$
4
,4
5
2
.9
4

$
4
3
,7
7
6
.4
2

H
A
P
 O
V
E
R
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
S

$
6
8
6
.5
0

$
5
3
8
.0
0

$
6
9
1
.5
0

$
5
7
0
.0
0

$
5
0
1
.0
0

$
5
7
6
.7
0

$
3
,5
6
3
.7
0

T
O
T
A
L
S

$
1
6
,1
4
2
.8
3

$
8
,5
4
0
.8
3

$
6
,7
3
5
.9
4

$
5
,7
0
3
.9
6

$
5
,2
3
6
.9
2

$
5
,0
2
9
.6
4

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
0
.0
0

$
4
7
,3
9
0
.1
2

 

 



3
5
 

 

M
o
n
th
ly

1
0
/2
7
/0
8

1
2
/1
/0
8

1
/1
/0
9

2
/2
/0
9

3
/2
/0
9

4
/1
/0
9

5
/1
/0
9

6
/1
/0
9

7
/1
/0
9

8
/1
/0
9

9
/1
/0
9

1
0
/1
/0
9

1
1
/2
/0
9

1
2
/1
/0
9

1
/4
/1
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s

0
1
6
6

2
2
6

2
9
3

3
4
9

4
2
3

4
9
9

5
8
4

6
4
8

7
1
6

7
8
3

8
3
8

8
9
0

9
5
9

1
0
1
2

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 N
e
w
 t
o
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8
 P
ro
g
ra
m

0
6
9

2
6

1
9

3
4

3
9

3
6

3
8

3
3

4
3

2
8

2
5

2
9

4
1

3
0

A
c
ti
v
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 

L
is
te
d

6
4

7
9

9
4

9
4

1
1
6

1
3
1

2
1
1

2
4
1

2
3
6

2
4
9

2
6
3

2
4
5

2
3
8

2
5
1

2
3
1

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 R
e
n
ta
l 
L
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 R
e
n
ta
l 
L
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
2
0
0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e
b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y-

0
9

Ju
n
-

0
9

J
u
l-

0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
ct
-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

Ja
n
-

1
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s 
N
e
w
 t
o

S
e
c
tio
n
 8
 P
ro
g
ra
m

A
ct
iv
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s

L
is
te
d



36 

 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Ron Dion, Phyllis Harrison, Linda Evans 

Date:  December 31, 2009 

Program Summary December 2009 

Total Clients Under Contract: 202 
Graduates: 1 
Escrow Disbursed: $0-participant will pick up check 1/6/10 
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 3 
New Contracts: 0 
 

FSS Program News 
 
Workshops 
FSS partnered with Consumer Credit Counselors of the East Bay on Saturday December 5, 
2009 and held a “Ready, Willing, and Able” Financial Workshop. Twenty-one FSS 
participants attended. Participants were shown strategies to examine current financial 
habits, develop new money management skills, set financial goals, and create a plan for the 
future. The presenter from Consumer Credit Counselors of the East Bay expressed her own 
excitement about the FSS program by stating the following, “You have a wonderful group of 
people that you are working with and I am so impressed with your program and the turnout 
on a Saturday morning….”  
 
Holiday Celebration 
December 9, 2009, FSS held its end of the year holiday celebration. The event was a great 
success with 71 adults in attendance plus all their enthusiastic children. The celebration 
began with HACA’s Executive Director, Chris Gouig, and Anu Natarajan, Housing 
Commission Chairperson, acknowledging the NAHRO poster contest winners and 
participants. The agency winners received certificates and their framed poster. National 
NAHRO winner Alaysia received the highest recognition. She read an essay describing her 
experience drawing her poster. Two other commissioners were in attendance, Allan Maris 
and Ursula Reed. Commissioner Maris participated in the event by assisting with the 
certificate presentations. Commissioner Reed was acknowledged for her leadership in 



37 

overseeing the art activity where these posters were created and presented a certificate to 
one of the agency winners. 
 
Many HACA staff and volunteers from the FSS program also assisted in making the night 
successful. For entertainment, the families engaged in arts and crafts such as taking photos 
and making photo frames, coloring and decorating holiday cards. There were several raffles 
for grocery gift cards and food baskets. 
 
Holiday Gifts Gathering 
Each year the need for support for this event grows and the number of families who are 
struggling grows. Thanks to donations from Commissioners, HACA staff, Toys for Tots, local 
retailers and vendors and FSS participants themselves, we were able to give gifts and/or 
grocery gift cards to 113 FSS families.  

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 



  

Attachment A – Page 2 

 



  

Attachment A – Page 3 



  

Attachment A – Page 4 



  

Attachment A – Page 5 



  

Attachment A – Page 6 



  

Attachment A – Page 7 



  

Attachment A – Page 8 



  

Attachment A – Page 9 



 
 

A
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
A
 –
 P
a
g
e
 1
0
 



  

Attachment A – Page 11 



  

Attachment A – Page 12 



 
 

A
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t 
A
 –
 P
a
g
e
 1
3
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 



 

Attachment B – Page 2 

 
 
 



 

Attachment B – Page 3 



 

Attachment B – Page 4 



 

Attachment B – Page 5 



 

Attachment B – Page 6 



 

Attachment B – Page 7 



 

Attachment B – Page 8 



 

Attachment B – Page 9 



 

Attachment B – Page 10 



 

Attachment B – Page 11 



 

Attachment B – Page 12 



 

Attachment B – Page 13 



 

Attachment B – Page 14 



 

Attachment B – Page 15 



 

Attachment B – Page 16 



 

Attachment B – Page 17 



 

Attachment B – Page 18 



 

Attachment B – Page 19 



 

Attachment B – Page 20 



 

Attachment B – Page 21 



 

Attachment B – Page 22 



 

Attachment B – Page 23 



 

Attachment B – Page 24 



 

Attachment B – Page 25 

 
 
 

 


